: E\IEH FLAGSH

SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL
ADVISORY COUNCIL (SFRAC)
BOARD MEETING

AGENDA



Regular Meeting of the SFRAC Board of Directors
Thursday, February 29, 2024, 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.
City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building, EOC Rm., 2" Floor Conference Rm.
616 E. Del Mar, Laredo, Texas 78045

AGENDA

24-44 Item 24-44: Call to Order — Chairman, Jorge Delgado
a. Roll Call = Chairman.
b. Introduction of Guests — Chairman.

24-45 (Tab 1) ltem 24-45: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval of the Minutes to the SFRAC Board meeting held January 30, 2024 -
Chairman.

24-46 (Tab 2)_ltem 24-46: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval of the SFRAC Bank Fund Balance/Accounts Statement Report, and
Expense Report for the Period of January 11, 2024, thru February 10, 2024 —
Chairman.

24-47 Item 24-47: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the
Approval to Change the Regularly Scheduled Seven Flags Regional Advisory
Council Board of Directors Meeting from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m., Based on
Comments Made by Board Members During the January 2024 Meeting —
Chairman.

24-48 (Tab 3) ltem 24-48: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the
Approval to Restructure the Existing Committees and Form Individual Committees
for the Stroke, Cardiac/STEMI, and Neonatal/NICU From the Hospital Program
Components Represented within Both Hospitals in the SFRAC Region and to
Approve the Nomination and Appointment of the Respective Chairmen and Vice-
Chairmen for Newly Formed Committees Having Vacancies as a Result of Staff
Attrition or the Restructuring Process- Chairman.

24-49 (Tab 4) ltem 24-49 Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is a Second
Request Seeking Approval and Authorization to Change the Number of Regular
Board Meetings Held within a Fiscal Year (i.e., September 1% through August 31st)
from Six (6) to a Modified Quarterly Schedule [i.e., Four (4) Times a Year] to be
Held on the Months of September, January, April, and August — Chairman.




24-50 (Tab 5) ltem 24-50: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the

24-51 (Tab

24-52 (Tab

Approval to Authorize the Re-Distribution of FY24 System Development Grant
Award Funds and FY24 EMS County Assistance Grant Funds Among EMS Entities
in Good Standing from those SFRAC EMS Entities Not Having Complied with the
January 31, 2024, Deadline Submittal of SFRAC Required Membership Application
as Per By-Law Guidelines - Chairman

6) Item 24-51: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the
Approval of the SFRAC Committees Reports — Chairman.

Trauma/Injury Prevention Committee (Chairman: Letisia Colon; Vice-Chairman:
Joe Gonzalez)

Perinatal/NICU Committee (Chairman: Angelica Perez; Vice-Chairman: Lupita
Cisneros)

Maternal Committee (Chairman: Vacant; Vice-Chairman: Vacant)

EMS/Prehospital Committee: (Chairman: Victor Villarreal; Vice-Chairman:
Chantelle Molina)

Stroke/STEMI Committee: (Chairman: Vacant; Vice-Chairman: Angie Alvarez)

7) ltem 24-52: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval of the Recommendation Made by the Ad-Hoc Committee to Authorize the
Allocation of Available FY24 EMS RAC Exceptional Item (E.l.) Funds Equally
Among Participating SFRAC EMS and Hospital Entities in Good Standing with the
Organization and in Accordance with DSHS Allowable Costs Associated with EMS
RAC Exceptional ltem Funding. - Chairman

24-53(Tab 8) ltem 24-53: Other Business — Chairman.

24-54 (Tab

a. Report on the FY24 Membership Summary (i.e., Membership Fees and
Document Submittals) - SFRAC Administrator.

b. Report on the Status of South Texas Wristband/Pulsara Project Among TSA-T

EMS Entities and Hospitals — Joe Gonzalez.

Report on the Senate Bill 8 State Program — Joe Gonzalez.

Discussion Regarding Reporting Hospital Data as Part of the SFRAC Committee

Reports at Each of the SFRAC Board of Directors Meetings.

e. Basic Level Presentation Regarding the CARES Program Presented by Ms. Kim
Hermie BSN, RN, Texas CARES State Coordinator.

Qo

9) ltem 24-54 Communication/Correspondence — Chairman.




24-55 |tem 24-55: Next SFRAC Board meeting — Chairman.

FY24 Meeting Schedule

Date Location
Friday, September 29, 2023 Laredo Medical Center, 1700 E. Saunders, 3. Floor,
Room 3-D (Ortho Unit Gym), Laredo, Texas, 78041

Monday, October 23, 2023 City of Laredo Fire/EMS Administrative Building, 616
E. Del Mar, EOC Room, 2nd. Floor, Laredo, Texas,
78045

Tuesday, January 30, 2024 City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building,
EOC Rm., 2nd Floor Conference Rm.,616 E. Del Mar, Laredo,
Texas 78045

Thursday, February 29, 2024 City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building,
EOC Rm., 2nd Floor Conference Rm.,616 E. Del Mar, Laredo,
Texas 78045

Thursday, May 30, 2024

Friday, August 30, 2024

| Title/tocation _ . cell i
Jorge Delgado TSA-T Chairman (956) 552-8080
John Keiser TSA-T Administrator (956) 693-0536

24-56 ltem 24-56: PUBLIC COMMENT: Individuals/Organizations providing comments are
required to complete a SFRAC Public Comment Sign-In Sheet. The Board asks that each
presenter's comments pertain to RAC business. The public comment process and matters
resulting from the process shall be directed by the Chairman. The Board will not discuss or take
immediate action on any agenda or non-agenda item(s) as a result of comments presented
during the meeting. The Board will hear the public comments but will not respond in the form of
dialog, except to ask questions, if necessary. All information received is subject to verification.
Those requesting to address the Board are granted three (3) minutes to address their topic(s).
The Board has requested that no insulting, abusive or profane language be used. As each
individual speaker begins his/her testimony, they must state their name for the record and state
on whose behalf they are providing comments.

24-57 {tem 24-57: Adjournment — Chairman.




ITEM 24-45 (TAB 1)



Regular Meeting of the SFRAC Board of Directors
Tuesday, January 30, 2024, 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.
City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building, EOC Rm., 2 Floor Conference Rm.
616 E. Del Mar, Laredo, Texas 78045

AGENDA

MINUTES

24-30 Item 24-30: Call to Order — Chairman, Jorge Delgado

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman, Jorge Delgado at 10:06 a.m.,
Tuesday, January 30, 2024.

a. Roll Call = Chairman.

At the request of the Chairman, Mr. John Keiser, SFRAC Administrator proceeded
with the roll call:

Angel Care Ambulance: Reynaldo Veliz (Director) - Present

Bronze Star Ambulance: Absent

City of Laredo Fire/EMS: Chief Silvestre Rodriguez (Vice-Chairman) — Present
Doctors Hospital of Laredo: Letisia Colon (Director) — Present

Priority EMS: Jorge Delgado (Chairman) — Present

Laredo Medical Center: Joe Gonzalez (Treasurer) — Present

Medpoint Ambulance: Juan Medellin (Director) — Present

Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS: Francisco Martinez (Alternate) Present
Zapata County Fire/EMS: Gabriela Gonzalez (Alternate) — Present
Victorious Care Ambulance Service: Grace Garza (Alternate) — Present
Laredo Lifeline: Christina Lara (Alternate) — Present

Lalitas Ambulance: Rene Castillo (Director) - P

Capital Care EMS: Absent

Texas Superior Ambulance Service: Ismael Flores (Director) - Present
Skyline EMS: Gilbert Garza (Alternate) - Present

Villa Ambulance: Lilianne Paul (Alternate) - Present

Primary Care Ambulance: Armando Parra (Director) — Present

Subject Matter Expert: Janson Delattre — Absent

Member at -Large: John Jones: Present

A quorum of members was met.




b. Introduction of Guests — Chairman.

Manuel Aguilera, Dignicare EMS

24-31 (Tab 1) ltem 24-31: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action in the

24-32 (Tab

24-33 (Tab

24-34 (Tab

Approval of the Minutes to the SFRAC Board meeting held October 23, 2023 -
Chairman.

A motion to accept the minutes as presented was made by Mr. Reynaldo Veliz and
seconded by Chief Silvestre Rodriguez. Motion carried, unanimously.

2) ltem 24-32: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action in the
Approval of the SFRAC Bank Fund Balance/Accounts Statement Report, and
Expense Report for the Period of October 11, 2023, thru January 10, 2024 -
Chairman.

Mr. John Keiser, SFRAC Administrator, presented the Board with the reports for
the period found in the action item. A motion to accept the reports as presented
was made by Mr. Joe Garza and seconded by Mr. Joe Gonzalez. Motion carried,
unanimously.

3)_ltem 24-33: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval to Ratify the FY24 1st Quarter EMS RAC/Exceptional ltem/System
development Financial Status Report as Submitted to the Texas Department of
State Health Services (DSHS) — Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator presented the reports to the Board indicating that there were
no expenses for the period but nevertheless the report needed to be submitted to
be and was submitted to DSHS. A motion to approve the reports as presented was
made by Mr. Gonzalez and seconded by Mr. Veliz. Motion carried, unanimously.

4) ltem 24-34: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval to Ratify the FY23/24 5th Quarter Senate Bill 8 Financial Report as
Submitted to the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) - Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator deferred the item to Mr. Joe Gonzalez, in the role of Program
Specialist for the SB8 Program. Mr. Gonzalez presented the Board with the report
for the 5" Quarter period. He indicated that the additional funds reflected on the
report was to be used for courses to be aligned with the City of Laredo Fire/EMS
Department, but City of Laredo Legal Department was in the process of reviewing
the agreement which is to be the basis for this arrangement.

A motion to accept the report as presented was made by Mr. Veliz and seconded
by Mr. Ismael Flores. Motion carried, unanimously.




24-35 (Tab 5) ltem 24-35: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the

24-36 (Tab

Approval to Authorize the SFRAC Chairman to Appoint Members from the SFRAC
Board or General Membership to Form an Ad-Hoc Committee to Identify a Project
for the Utilization of the Exceptional Item (IE) Funds in the FY24 Grant Cycle -
Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator addressed the Board explaining that there had been a
contract amendment to the EMS RAC contract that provided an additional
$150,000 for the SFRAC region for this fiscal year. Further explaining that the
funds were specifically allocated to assist the RAC throughout the state with funds
to increase capacity in meeting new rules and obligation being placed by the DSHS
on RACs. The funds can also be used for regional projects as approved by RAC
Boards. SFRAC Administrator indicated that this fiscal year (i.e., FY24) funds
would not be used to contract for services in meeting obligation associated with the
new rules and meeting the RAC Self-Assessment measures. With that being the
case, the funds would necessarily be used for another purpose in the region, that
being regional project(s) or individual projects.

SFRAC Administrator requested the appointment of an Ad-Hoc Committee of
interested members from the Board to discuss and assist in determining how the
funds would be spent. At the time no members volunteered. SFRAC administrator
indicated that after the meeting if any members would be interested in participating
that they send him an email indicating so. A motion to form the ad-hoc committee
was made by Mr. Veliz and seconded by Mr. Gonzalez. Motion carried,
unanimously.

6) ltem 24-36: Presented to the Board for Review and Possible Action is the
Approval to Authorize Entering into Contract with Aplos, LLC, for the Purchase and
Utilization of a Non-Profit Accounting Management Software at a Discounted
Annual Rate of One Thousand Eight Hundred and Fourteen Dollars and Forty
Cents ($1,814.40) and a One Time Implementation and Set-up Fee of One
Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety Nine Dollars ($1,499.00) for a Grand Total of
Three Thousand Three Hundred and Thirteen Dollars ($3,313.40). Costs for the
Purchase of this Software and Related Services Will be Covered by EMS
RAC/Exceptional ltem (El) Contract Funds Dedicated in Part for Staff and Capacity
Development Among RACs throughout the State - Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator provided that Board with the results of the most recent fiscal
review as performed by DSHS, which resulted in three findings, one of which dealt
specifically with the SFRAC’s lack of having an adequate accounting system.
SFRAC Administrator indicated that several accounting products were considered
and the Aplos software provided the best in terms of customer service, technical
assistance and training opportunities, and focus on non-profit fund accounting
needs. A motion to acquire the Aplos fund accounting software was made by




Ms. Letisia Colon and seconded by Mr. Gonzalez. Motion carried, unanimously.

24-37 (Tab 7) ltem 24-37: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action is the

Approval to Form an Individual Committee for the Maternal Health Hospital
Program Component Representing Both Hospitals in the SFRAC Region and the
Nomination and Appointment of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman for the Same Said
Committee - Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator addressed the Board reminding them that the new DSHS
rules would require the formation of individual committees among the RACs and
that at the current time NICU, Perinatal and Maternal are all part of one committee.
A motion to form a separate committee for Maternal was made by Mr. Gonzalez
and seconded by Ms. Colon. Motion carried unanimously.

24-38 (Tab 8) ltem 24-38: Presented to the Board for Discussion and Possible Action in the

Approval of the SFRAC Committees Reports — Chairman.

Trauma/Injury Prevention Committee (Chairman: Letisia Colon; Vice-Chairman:
Joe Gonzalez)

Ms. Letisia Colon reported that on January 9, 2024, a course for Stop the Bleed
was conducted for Triumph Highschool. Twenty-Eight staff members from the
school received the training. Involved in providing the course were Doctors
Hospital, Laredo Medical Center and Laredo College.

Perinatal/NICU/Maternal Committee (Chairman: Angelica Perez; Vice-Chairman:
Lupita Cisneros)

No items to report.

EMS/Prehospital Committee: (Chairman: Victor Villarreal; Vice-Chairman:
Chantelle Molina)

No actual items to report from the Committee, although Ms. Chantelle Molina
briefly mentioned the implementation of code use within the hospitals.

Stroke/STEMI Committee: (Chairman: Jennifer Garcia; Vice-Chairman: Angie
Alvarez)

No items to report.




24-39(Tab 9) ltem 24-39: Other Business — Chairman.

a. Report on the FY24 Membership Summary (i.e., Membership Fees and
Document Submittals) - SFRAC Administrator.

SFRAC Administrator presented the Board with a brief report regarding the
membership summary, indicating that several members still had not submitted
the required documentation which could potentially make them according to the
By-Laws, Members Not In Good Standing”, which would affect their eligibility
status to receive funds.

b. Report on the Status of South Texas Wristband/Pulsara Project Among TSA-T
EMS Entities and Hospitals — Joe Gonzalez.

Mr. Joe Gonzalez presented the Board with a report on the status of the ongoing
implementation of the wristband/Pulsara project. He indicated that for Pulsara at
least 9 entities had created accounts, 2 were in process, and 6 had not started.

c. Report on the Senate Bill 8 State Program — Joe Gonzalez.

Mr. Gonzalez provided the Board with a report on the SB8 Program. According
to the information from Mr. Gonzalez’ report, 48 students had already taken the
course with 9 passing and 10 pending to take the exam. Additionally, 29
students failed the course and only one paid back the tuition cost. All other
students not having paid back the tuition have been referred to DSHS for further
action in collecting the funds. Mr. Gonzalez also mentioned that the additional
$150,000 received under the SB8 program will be used to provide 39 students
tuition funds under the City of Laredo. The agreement/MOU is still under review
with the City of Laredo legal department.

d. Report on DSHS’ Fiscal Support and Oversight Unit Fiscal Monitoring Review
Findings of the SFRAC Organization Fiscal Program Component.

SFRAC Administrator presented the Board with documentation regarding the
findings of the most recent fiscal review performed by DSHS on the SFRAC
organization. He indicated that there were three findings of which all had been
addressed with a corrective action plan. The most crucial finding consisted of
SFRAC not having a reliable accounting system to manage the organization. As
a result of that SFRAC administrator indicated that the new accounting software
(i.e., Aplos) would address that issue. In addition, SFRAC Administrator
acknowledged that he would be working on developing fiscal policies and
procedures for the SFRAC organization which would be separate from the By-
Laws.




e. Discussion Regarding Subject Matter Related to the EMS Wall Time White

Paper Recently Released by the Governor's Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
and Trauma Advisory Council (GETAC).

The item regarding the EMS Wall Time White Paper recently released by
GETAC was presented and discussion on the matter ensued. Ms. Diedra Lee,
DSHS representative, was also involved in the discourse, providing a
perspective from DSHS and a brief history regarding the paper. Chief Silvestre
Rodriguez shared with the Board his experience with the local hospitals,
primarily Laredo Medical Center, on incidents of Wall Time. He did indicate that
discussions with the hospitals are currently taking place to improve Wall/Wait
Times. In addition, he agreed to provide data to the Board showing trends over

time.

24-40 (Tab 10) ltem 24-26 Communication/Correspondence — Chairman.

SFRAC Administrator presented the Board with correspondence pertaining to the
SFRAC. As part of the correspondence received was an email communication
from Ms. Kim Hermie, introducing her as the new State of Texas CARES
Coordinator. A second communication was also in the form of an email from Hilary
Watt, CBRAC CEOQO, announcing the availability of disaster training courses for
trauma program managers. And the last set of correspondence was again in the
form of an email from Kim Hermie, Texas CARES Coordinator, presenting CARES

program data collection forms.

24-41 ltem 24-41: Next SFRAC Board meeting — Chairman.

~ Date

FY24 Meeting Schedule

B Locaton

Friday, September 29, 2023

Laredo Medical Center, 1700 E. Saunders, 3'9. Floor,
Room 3-D (Ortho Unit Gym), Laredo, Texas, 78041

Monday, October 23, 2023

City of Laredo Fire/EMS Administrative Building, 616
E. Del Mar, EOC Room, 2nd. Floor, Laredo, Texas,
78045

Tuesday, January 30, 2024

City of Laredo Fire/EMS Department Administrative Building,
EOC Rm., 2nd Floor Conference Rm.,616 E. Del Mar, Laredo,
Texas 78045

Thursday, February 29, 2024

8D

Thursday, May 30, 2024

Friday, August 30, 2024




T TSATChaiman  |(956)5528080
John Keiser TSA-T Administrator (956) 693-0536

24-42 |tem 24-42: PUBLIC COMMENT: Individuals/Organizations providing comments are
required to complete a SFRAC Public Comment Sign-In Sheet. The Board asks that each
presenter's comments pertain to RAC business. The public comment process and matters
resulting from the process shall be directed by the Chairman. The Board will not discuss or take
immediate action on any agenda or non-agenda item(s) as a result of comments presented
during the meeting. The Board will hear the public comments but will not respond in the form of
dialog, except to ask questions, if necessary. All information received is subject to verification.
Those requesting to address the Board are granted three (3) minutes to address their topic(s).
The Board has requested that no insulting, abusive or profane language be used. As each
individual speaker begins his/her testimony, they must state their name for the record and state
on whose behalf they are providing comments.

No one registered for public comment.
24-43 Item 24-43: Adjournment — Chairman.

A motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Gonzalez and seconded by Chief Rodriguez. Motion
carried unanimously. Meeting adjourned.




ITEM 24-46 (TAB 2)



|

|
|

I

|
[
-
I
.

il
|

E—
PSR

¥202/01/20

T5°TT6LYS $8'9€2'2L1S [l Ov'€92°06$ NIyl ¥20z/T1/10
¥20z/01/10

89'GET'6VS 00°£90'v8TS [ O €94°065 NIyl €20Z/11/CT

—_
-
—
]
]
—
oo

96'9€2'TLES T€962°€SS

96'9€T'TLES 1€962'€SS

T€SLT'LS

R

gzoz/ot/et
89'0£7'9¢S 00°0% oY’ 6€S

96'9€T'TLES

9 vey'9TTsS 9€ L1 LS

NIyl £20z/11/6

g€coz/ot/6
nJyl £20z/11/80

TR 74 A TAAS 645018

11
1A

96'TT9'EETS vS'6LY'9TS

NIyl €20Z/1T/T1T
€20T/T1/T1
€O'TLEBES 00'0S ov'6£$ niyl £z20z/11/01
€20z/01/01
€0°L6L'VES 00'0% ov'6£$
TT'8LTZES 09'5£0°STS £8'895$
Jjue|eg
(weiBoud 8 Suisop)
{11g 91euas ““a°) aduejeg pun4
aouejeg Suiso|d Suisop) puny 2Jue|eg 2Jjuejeg il 9dueISISSY
JuNo2Y Jswdojanag Buisop) Suiso|) Auno)
mc_u_ox Emﬁm_oce_sm:mo_oc&uﬁ_mzm m_>m

8uipu3 pouad

140d3Y4 IDNVIVE ONIANI ANV SINNOJJV ANNL INVIDO0Ud INVE IVHLS YTAd

L40d3d INJW3ILVLS SINNOJIV PCTAd
TIIONNOD AHOSIAQV TYNOIDIY SOVTd NIAIS






’ MEMBER FDIC
T s .. 6721 McPherson Road =
Community 575 setsams FDIC
B k Latedo, TX 78045 S s Stotts v

an {356) 722 €313

KOTICE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR (MPORTANT INFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591594
1216 SANTA MARIA Enclosures

LAREDO TX 78040

FMS Cronn "}L( Asgic "/'*’L*‘xfa‘”%

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: As of January 22, 2024, the daily Point of_sale_dollar limit for TCB
debit cards is $5,050 and the daily ATM withdrawal_dollar limit is $2,000.
For questions, contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0

Account Number 1010591594  Statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24

Previous Balance ) 90,763.40 Days in the statement period 32

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Led?er 90,763.40

. Checks/pebits .00 Average Collected 90,763.40
Service Charge .00
Interest Pai .00
current Balance 90,763.40

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION

Date Balance

1/11 90,763.40







Tﬂi’ MEMBER FOIC
Coipnity 54~ FDIC

Latedo, TX 7H45
{956) 722.831

KOTICE BEE REVERSE SIDE FOR tMPORTANT INFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591495
EMS RAC ACCOUNT Enclosures 1

1216 SANTA_MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: As of'Januarx 22, 2024, the daily point of_sale_dollar Timit for TCB
debit cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal_dollar limit is $2,000.
For questions, contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 1

Account Number 1010591495 sStatement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24

Previous Balance . 184,067.00 Days in the statement period 32

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 181,479.15

3 checks/Debits 11,830.15 Average Collected 181,479.15
service Charge .00
Interest Pai .00
Current Balance 172,236.85

CHECKS AND WITHDRAWALS

Date Description Amount
2/05 PURCHASE Aplos Software 1,499.00-
PPD
9000021251
2/05 PURCHASE Aplos Software 1,814.40-
PPD
9000021251

CHECKS IN SERIAL NUMBER ORDER

Date Check No Amount

2/05 1005 8,516.75
Denotes missing check numbers




MEMBER FDIC

Te ", T FDIC

Comimunity £’ s iz

Bﬂ.l'lk Latedn, TX 78045
(356) 722. 8313
NOTWE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR (MPORTANT WFORMATION

| Texas Communily Bank Home

Date 2/09/24 Page 2
Primary Account 10 059149;

Enclosures

TCB COURTESY CHECKING 1010591495 (Continued)

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION
Balance

Date Balance
1/11 184,067.00 2/05 172,236.85




TME SEVEN FLAGS 1005
EMS RAC ACCOUNT

R LY iShoeps T
Pay to the g&‘-{ﬁ [ j ‘(%:&‘ l $ 23/6‘ 75
SrdaE v hawredees e

*,’Cnmmumly oo lensle A3 c“ %
vl = M:ﬁ‘"yk"é:}:?“m‘r - -
¢ 1iLQ2LALONE LDOS »A040594Kq5m P

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1005 Date: 02/05 Amount: $8,516.75






PO Box 4
Latedo, TX 78045
(956) 72283

CoTr%}%‘m’ty 6721 McPherson Rood _F___D__lg
Bank

NOTICE: SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR tMPORTANT INFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA, TRUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591396
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT Enclosures 2

1216 SANTA_MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: As of_JanuarX 22, 2024, the daily pPoint of_sale_dollar limit for TCB
debit cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal_dollar Tlimit is $2,000.
For questions, contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 2

Account Number 1010591396 statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24

Previous Balance 49,235.68 Days in the statement period 32
1 Deposits/Credits 750.00 Average Ledger 48,784.28
2 Checks/Debits 2,063.16 Average Collected 48,784 .28

Service Charge .00

Interest Pai .00

Current Balance 47,922.52

DEPOSITS AND ADDITIONS
Date Description Amount
2/01 DDA REGULAR DEPOSIT 750.00

CHECKS AND WITHDRAWALS
Date Description Amount
2/01 DBT CRD 1650 01/31/24 22326548 159.90-
ZOooM.Us 888-799-9666
WWW.ZOOM.US  CA C#3893

CHECKS IN SERIAL NUMBER ORDER
Date Check No Amount

2/01 1012 1,903.26
* Denotes missing check numbers




MEMBER FDIC

Corl;%ﬁ%ngkty 6721 McPhetson Road E,D_I_cf_

PO Box 450269
Latedn, FX 78045
(956) 722-.8313
NOTICE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR WPORTANT INFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

Date 2/09/24 Page 2
Primary Account 1010591396
Enclosures 2

TCB COURTESY CHECKING 1010591396 (Continued)

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION
Date Balance Date

Balance
2/01 47,922.52

1/11 49,235.68



Texas Community Bank

AL /,

\D(?%%”_;BQCQ

ST 3

,ﬁ é‘u

\Ga—

oot

[T .
B —

A e S B e e e sy

$25057~00 12 412 301059 1396

DDA REGULAR DEPOSIT Date: 02/01  Amount: $750.00

CHECKING DEPOSIT

T

.0

DDA REGULAR CHECK 1012 Date: 02/01

1012

THE SEVEN FLAG! 4
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT 261N 149 H
I2|B SANTA MARIA
REDO, TX 78040 __L'thz/_v” u—r sonceamm B
th Ia §
Byethe e (¢ IEVAZZES ‘

e R g
sl«c«-a( MW AA«—&W( 7 LL“"
ApcdRghy

ara ‘llfh.mnullm‘b.".'u TROML
Fofet ﬁ‘fﬁf&m faaing
11iL92L8 30002 w0 lDS

)-'- ollars 88 EZ..

Amount: $1,903.26






MEMBER FDIC

Te:i@. F c

6721 McPhereon Road 5

(jﬁfnigg:i?y'riLgrg?%§% ~.!E!.I.L..
(356) 722.6310

NOVKCE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR (MPORTANT ILFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591693
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNT Enclosures

1216 SANTA_MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: As of.Januarﬁ 22, 2024, the daily Point of_sale_dollar 1imit for TCB
debit cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal_dollar Timit is $2,000.
For questions, contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0

Account Number 1010591693  Statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24

Previous Balance 53,296.31 Days in the statement period 32

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 53,296.31

. Checks/Debits .00 Average ColTected 53,296.31
Service Charge .00
Interest Pai .00
Current Balance 53,296.31

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION
Date Balance

1/11 53,296.31







ti@ MEMBER FDIC
TN i hind FDIC

C()I'I‘ll'l'llll’ll[}r £.0 Box 450269
Bank © iz, 151

NOTICE BEE REVERSE SIDE FOR MPORTANT INFORMATION

I Texas Community Bank Home

THE SEVEN FLAGS REGIONAL ADVISORY Date 2/09/24 Page 1
COUNCIL ON TRAUMA,TRAUMA SERVICES AREA T Primary Account 1010591792
HOLDING ACCOUNT Enclosures

1216 SANTA MARIA
LAREDO TX 78040

CHECKING ACCOUNT

ALERT: As of_Januarx 22, 2024, the daily pPoint of_sale_dollar limit for TCB
debit cards is $5,000 and the daily ATM withdrawal dollar 1imit is $2,000.
For questions, contact us at (956) 722-8333.

TCB COURTESY CHECKING Number of Enclosures 0

Account Number 1010591792 Statement Dates 1/11/24 thru 2/11/24

Previous Balance 371,236.96 Days in the statement period 32

Deposits/Credits .00 Average Ledger 371,236.96

. Checks/Debits .00 Average Collected 371,236.96
Service Charge .00
Interest Pai .00
current Balance 371,236.96

DAILY BALANCE INFORMATION
Date Balance

1/11 371,236.96







FY24 OPERATING BUDGET EXPENSE REPORT

FY24 SFRAC GENERAL FUND
MEMBERSHIP REVENUE
SUMMARY

General Fund Projected

Membership Revenue for $15,150.00
FY24

Actual Membership Funds

Collected to Date $10,950.00
Total (+/-) % {$4,200.00)
FY24 GRANT PROGRAM
FUNDS

EMS County Assistance

Grant (Regular) $90.724.00
Senate Bill 500 Funding $0.00
System Development (i.e.,

Tobacco) $46,021.00
Exceptional item {E.I.)

Legislative Funding (EMS $150,000.00
RAC)

EMS RAC Grant (Regular) $34,067.00
FY24 Fund Raiser

(Bowlathon) $10,305.00
Total $331,117.00

(FEBRUARY)

FY24 General Fund (Program Operation) Expenditures

Projected

Cost
Post Office Fee $180.00
VFIS Insurance $1,500.00
TETAF Dues $900.00
DHSH Re: (Payment of
Disallowed Cost) $0.00

IRS Filing/1

CPA IRS Filing/income $1,000.00
Statement
RAC Chair/GETAC Travel
(November 2023, Austin, $3,800.00
Tx.)
GETAC Travel (February
2024, Austin, Tx., Required) $2,000.00
GETAC Travel (August 2024
Austin, Tx., Required) $3,800.00
TETAF Annual
Workshop/Confernce s0.00
GoDaddy Web Site Renewal

400.00
{Debit) $
Zoom $159.00
Subtotal $13,739.00

Total Under/Over Budget:

Actual
Cost (Paid)

$176.00

$1,000.00

$303.21

$1,271.35

$381.09
$159.00

$3,290.65

Difference

$4.00
$1,500.00
-$100.00
-$303.21

$1,000.00

$2,528.65

$2,000.00

$3,800.00
$0.00
$18.91
$0.00

$10,448.35

-$10,448.35

FY24 EMS County Assistance Grant Allocations

Bronze Starr Ambulance

Laredo Fire Department
EMS/Fire

Angel Care Ambulance

Webb County Volunteer
Fire/EMS

Victorious Care Ambulance

Priority EMS

Zapata County Fire/EMS
Texas Superior Ambulance
Laredo Lifeline

Medpoint Ambulance
Villa Ambulance

Lalitas Ambulance Care
Skyline EMS

Subtotal

Projected
Cost

$5,383.64
$5,383.62
$5,383.64
$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$14,934.00
$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.62

$16,570.00

$90,724.00

Actual
Cost Paid

$0.00

Difference

$5,383.64
$5,383.62
$5,383.64
$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$5,383.64

$14,934.00
$5,383.64
$5,383.64
$5,383.64
$5,383.64
$5,383.62
$16,570.00

$90,724.00




FY24 General Fund (Fund Raisers)

Funds Total Funds for Balance
Generated Project Utilization
Bowlathon $10,305.00 $0.00 $10,305.00
FY24 EMS RAC Grant
Projected Actual
Difference
Cost Cost Paid
Administrative Fee {1st Qtr.) $8,516.75 $8,516.75 $0.00
Administrative Fee (2nd Qtr.) $8,516.75 $0.00 $8,516.75
Administrative Fee (3rd Qtr.) $8,516.75 $0.00 $8,516.75
Adminstrative Fee (4th Qtr.) $8,516.75 $0.00 $8,516.75
Subtotal $34,067.00 $8,516.75 $25,550.25
Subtotal $10,305.00 $0.00 $10,305.00
FY24 System Development Grant Allocations £Y24 EMS RAC Grant (Exeptional item Funds) $150,000
Projected Actual Projected Actual
Difference . Fund Batance
Cost Cost Cost Cost Paid
Bronze Starr Ambulance $3,068.06 Project Funding (To Be $150,000.00 $150,000.00
Determined)
Laredo.Flre Department $3,068.06 Aplos Accounting Software $1,814.00 $1,814.00 -61,814.00
EMS/Fire Purchasee
Angel Care Ambulance $3,068.06 iApios Srcouuting STHASIE $1,499.00 $1,499.00 -$1,499.00
Set Up Fee
Webb County Volunteer
Fire/EMS e
Victorious Care Ambulance $3,068.06
Priority EMS $3,068.06 Subtotal $150,000.00 $146,687.00
Laredo Lifeline $3,068.06
Villa Ambulance $3,068.06 Senate Bili 8 Grant Program Funding
o Projected 1
Texas Superior Ambulance $3,068.06 N Ac“fa Balance
Cost Expenditures
Zapata County Fire/EMS $3,068.11 Education/Scholarships $454,334.00 $123,661.88 $330,672.12
Laredo Medical Center $3,068.06 RAC Administration $73,293.09 $40,175.25 $33,117.84
Dactors Hospital of Laredo $3,068.06 Equipment $0.00
Lalitas Ambulance Care $3,068.06 Incentives $0.00
Medpoint Ambulance $3,068.06 Subtotal $527,627.09 $163,837.13 $363,789.96
Skyline EMS $3,068.11
Subtotal $46,021.00 $0.00 Local Planning Grant (LPG)
Projected Actual =
) Difference
Cost Cost
Other To Be Determined $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Proj d Act
RUSE ual Difference $0.00
Cost Cost
$0.00
Subtotal $0.00

Subtotal $0.00







ITEM 24- 48 (TAB 3)



191u3) |e2IpS Opaien

Jopaug
[eJIPI [eusSIel

anoal 261039 ‘1q

. — T0SP S3VIAIBS
PUSYPDIUNTBLRK -56/-956 191U |eDIP3I OpaseT S, UBWOM 01321 aqun euep
1BU’SYI@O0}UNWTRIDRYT -mmmm.wmm J2IU)) |BDIP3W Opale 103eUIPJIO0)) |RDIUID ojjN| epnaT

: - It 1abeuepy
j8Usyddue|Iues euRpW -96/-966 J2JUd) |eDIPSN OpaleT WeiBolq [eusdiel uejjnues euep

Jopalig .

opaiJe1 Jo |e)dsoH sioyoq [e2IP3I [eUIBIE saplaeuag piaeq i
wod*duIsyn@soulausip adnjepens -mmmmmmm opaJe Jo |endsoH slo3o( Jopalig soJausi) 'd adnjepenc)

. . [AX44 1abeuely
woddUIsyn@zadoj Aaoeis _£76.066 opa.en Jo |eydsoH si0poqg Weiboid [eussiel zado Asoels
TIVIAS 3INOHd ANVdINOD 1L JNVN
Tuesqy - jussald

‘NOILVOO1

‘NVINHIVHO-3JIA

:31va ONIL33N

—Juasqy  :Juasald

‘NVIWHIVHO

331ININOD TVNH3ILVIN ¥CAd




09£8-90¢ (956) 112D
9617-£75-956 WO

opale
10 [eudsoH sJop0Q

19beue a3

NY ‘zanbupoy esoy

WoD*2UISYN®U0j0d°eISI3)

£€66-£25 (956) 119D
£612-£75-956 DO

opale
Jo |endsoy s100g

10jeulpioo) ewnel |

NY ‘NSg ‘uojod eisna

0v9b-bEE (9596) 112D
6922-£75-956 0

opaJen
10 |eyIdsoH s40300Q

10JeUIpI00D) M0AS

NY ‘e|liAy aibuy

Wwod*uIsyn®zawe] ‘esoy

9bbe-1££ (956) 119D
8€/7-€75-956 WO

opaie
J0 [eudsoH s10y0Q

10JeUIpI00)) Uled 394D

NY ‘NSg ‘zawe] 3150y

12Usy®zapueutay eyuen(

9bLb-96/-956 SO

J91Ua) |eJIPaN opadeT

40jeulploo) |estuld NOI

NY ‘NSg ‘zapueusad ejuenr

19U'SYd®Zapurulay 03sauls

TLT$-96/-956 3240

19U3) |eDIPa OpaieT

Jop=4ig a3

NY ‘NSW ‘ZapueusaH 03sau.]

JoUsyo@oulu essli0d

2¢16€-96£-956 32O

12)U3) |eDIpP3| OpaseT

Jojeulpio0) [ediuld g3

NY ‘NSg ‘OulN essuoD

18U'SYDD)|eaLIe|[IA BSSDURA

C16€-96£-956 220

131U |edIp3|y OpaleT

Jojeuipioo) [eaud a3

NY ‘NSg ‘za|ezuoc) essauep

19U°SUDDRUIDS BSSSUBRA

LTTH-96/-956 220

191U [eJIpa|y OpaJeT]

J10jeulpioo) ewnel |

NY ‘NSg ‘eulas essauep

PUsYIDeUlloW [ueyd

£0CO-TEC-TOL I
8T¢E-96/£-956 O

191U3) [eDIP3 OpaJeT]

10jeUIpJo0) MOAS

NY ‘dNQ ‘euljo *3 |33ueyd

J8U'syd®zaed eunsud

£L/T€-96/-956 DWO

19)U3) {eJIp3y OpaieT

10jeup1007) uied 3saY)

NY ‘NS9 ‘zaed eunsu)

VNI

3INOHd

ANVdAWNOD

Eins

INVN

‘NOILVYIOO1

Touasqy T judsald

‘NVIWHIVHO-3JIA

:31va ONIL3I3IN

T Juasqy  :juassld

‘NYINHIVHD

J31ININOD IIN3LS / DVIAHVO veAd




WO 2UISYN®zanbLpoy esoy

09£8-902 (956) 112D
9612-£2S-956 2O

opaie
40O |endsoH s10300Q

Jobeuep g3

NY ‘zanbupoy esoy

W02 2UISYN®Uojo) eIsna

££66-£25 (956) 112D
£612-£25-956 DWO

opaie
JO |eydsoH s10300Q

J10JeuIpJo0) ewnel|

NY ‘NSg ‘uojoD eisiian

wod*duIsyn@seuljes-edljpbuy

0b9b-bEE (956) 119D
6922-£25-956 DO

opale
J0 |eudsoH s10100Q

Jojeu|ploo) =2X041S

NY ‘ejiay albuy

Wod*uIsynN®zawe | 'esoy

ovbe-144 (956) 119D
8€/£7-€75-956 DO

opale
10 |eNdsoH s1o30Q

10JeuIp400) uied 3s8YD

NY ‘NSg ‘zawe] aisoy

18U'SYdI@zapueula) ejuen

9b/-96/-956 AHO

JUua)
|edIpa|y opase

Jojeulploo) [eatuld NI

NY ‘NSg ‘zapueusad ejuen(

JoUSyd@zapueulay 03saula

TLTH-96£-956 S2HO

2ua)
|edIpajy OpaseT

J039.1q a3

NY ‘NSW ‘zapueutay oissuil

19U'SYd@OouIU” BesSHoD

C16€-96/-956 32O

19U
|edipaly opaler]

Jojeulpioo) |eduD a3

N¥ ‘NSg ‘OUIN essuoD

19U°SYO®)|ea.4eljIA BSSAURA

C¢T16€£-96/£-956 U0

1)
[eJIpajy Opase

Jojeulpioo) [eautd a3

NY ‘NSg ‘zajezuog) essauep

JBU'SYd@euUJIaS essaueA

LTTH-96/-956 320

JENIE)
[eJIp3| opaleT

Jojeuipioo) ewnelj

NY ‘NSg ‘eulas essauep

1BUsyddzaed eunsid

LLT€-96/-956 =20

1)
|edipaly OpaseT

10jeuIpI00)) uied 359y

NY ‘NSg ‘zaed eunsuD

1BUsYdIDeuljow[ueyd

£0C0-TEC-TOE 113D
8TCE-96£-956 DO

12u)
[edipaiy opalen

10jeUIpI00) aoNS

NY ‘dNQ ‘euilon 3 193ueyd

TIVNE INOHd ANVYdWNOO JLIL JNVN
T juasqy T juasald
‘NOILVIO1
‘NVINHIVHO-3JIA
— juasqy  :juasald
:31vd SNIL33N
‘NVINHIVHO

J31ININOD IMOHLS VCAd




#01¢

lopang

WooroUISYN@AWSEB3IA 0LSq0Y il Ha eopo [Evau0oN seBa||iA 0G0y "Id
WOD"dUISYN@SeLu| euel||n -mmmmwwm 1Ha 1010311 |BIRUOSN sewr euey|i

WD dUISYN®ZZa|eZUoS) esi -mmmN.MMM 1Ha Em‘_mm_._wn_mﬂ%ﬂ Zo|ezuoo ‘A esi
BU'sP@TZeIp epLed . oW1 1012110 NDIN zeIq epLyed
pNopPI@EUIYYDSS -SNN.WMM W anN BUIYYD AIGIES *IQ

Usyd@zasad edlsbue -mm%wmm M WdN Za1ad eoljebuy

Vg 3NOHd ANVAINOD FLL INVN

‘NOILVIO01

Tesqy - juasald

‘NVINHIVHO-3DIA

:31vd ONILI3IN

T asqy  :juasald
Z343d VOIT3ONY

‘NVINHIVHD

33 1LININOD NJIN / TVLVNO3N ¥CAd




60€¢

PUSYID TZopueulay ey -96/-956 13U3)) [BJIPa OpaJeT Jensibay ewnel ) ZopueuIdH ew|y
I1Th
19U°SYOD@RUIISeSSAUBA -96/-956 191U9) |eJIPO OpaJe 1012UIpI00)) Bwnes) BUJSS BSSDUBA
TviNg 3INOHd ANVAINOD ILL JWVN
- AR

T juasqy T juasald

‘NOILVYI01 Zo|ezZuos) aso(
‘NVIWNSIVHO-3DIA
uasqQy . -3u9sald

:31vad ONILIIW uojo) ePNaT
NVINSIVHD

J31ININOD NOILNIAT™Ed ANUNCNI / VINNVAL vCAA




wodooyei@.taadaulpy) g

-157-956 '™ ‘aulRy opaien Josimadng Za|ezuoo) 13334
VNI 3INOHd ANVdNOD 1L JINVYN
Touasqy T juasald
‘NOILYOO1
‘NYIWHIVHO-3DIA
= ussqy . juesald
:31vd ONIL3I3N
‘NYINHIVHD

331ININOD TV1IdSOH-3dd / SIN3 ¥ZA4




ITEM 24-49 (TAB 4)



Aeq sewnsuy) ST 2@

1€ 0¢ 6C
8C (L 9C ST v tC U
Iz 0C 61 81 /LT 91 &I

bT €T ¢ TIT 01 6
L1191 S ¥ € T
S 4 1L M 1 N

$20¢ ¥38W3030

1€ Joc Y6z 8z Lz 9T

v2 € ¢ Tz 0Z 61

(T 91 ST b1 € e

0T 6 8 £ 9 §

E|lz |1

S 4 1L M L W
¥20Z 1SNONV

& «

L 9C¢ ST P €T U
0¢ 61T 8T (/1 9T SI
€T ¢ 11T 01 6 8
9 § v ¢ ¢ 1
S 4 1 M 1L W

207 TdV

T4
8T
11

8¢
1¢
14"

L

S

Lc
0¢
€1

113
4
91

oN

bunibsyueyl :8Z AON
AeQ ,suesaldA TT AON
AeQ snquinjoD :HT PO

8¢ (T 9
¢ 0C 6l
T €T O

L 9 S

1 M 1

S¢ ¥C

8T
11

$20T Y39W3AON

9¢
61
48

6C
[44
ST

1€ 0¢

TN 7N X4
8T ({41 91
IT 0T 6
P €

il m 1

¥c0c ANt

8¢ (T 9
I 0C 61
PT €T 1

L 9 S

1 M 1
$20¢ HOYVI

6¢
[44
St

i

S¢
8T
11

JA S
01

8¢
1¢
14!

1€
174
{1
o1

1€ 0 6¢
9¢ S ¥C € ¢
6T 8T (LT 9T ST
¢t 11 0T 6 8
s ¥ € T 1
s 4 1L M 1
t20¢ ¥390.100
6 8C LT 9T SC
¢ 1Z 0C 61 81
ST T €1 ¢ 11
8 L 9 S ¢
T
s 4 1 m 1
$20¢ ANNC
6¢ 8¢ [C
bz € ¢ 1T 0C
L1 9T ST +T &1
or 6 8 £ 9
eET T
S 4 1L M 1L

Aeq Joqen :zo das
Aeq 2ouspuadapu] 0 INC
Aeq |euowayy :£Z Aep

dVANT VO +20¢

8¢
1¢
14

144
JA !
01

9C
61
[4}

$Z0Z AdvNdg3d

L
0¢
€l

0¢
X4
91

T4
81
1T

_ 4

S¢
8T
11

x4
0¢
€1

wod Apyrinpaiepusajed)

AeQ sjuapisald 6T G4
Aeq bury Jauin uuel ST uer
AeQq s e\ MaN 10 uer

1€
14
L1
0)8
€
4

9¢
6T
[4"

1]
X4
91
6
[4
1

6¢ 8¢ (LT

(44NN YA VT4

ST ¢1 €1
8 ¢ 9
1

M 1L W

$20C AVIA

S¢
81
11

14

1

1€ Jog J 6¢
v €T T
(1 91 ST
01 6 8
€ ¢ 1
M L W

202 AYVNNVC

9C
61
4!

8¢
¥4
14!

L

S



ITEM 24-50 (TAB 5)



FY24 System Development Grant Re-Allocated Totals

Projected Re-Distributed Adjusted
Allocation Totals Funds Added  Allocation Totals

Bronze Starr Ambulance $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
::;7;::9 S s $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Angel Care Ambulance $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
::I:,:;lé “cn:u"ty polog i $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Victorious Care Ambulance $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Priority EMS $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Laredo Lifeline $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Villa Ambulance $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Texas Superior Ambulance $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Zapata County Fire/EMS $3,068.11 $219.13 $3,287.24
Laredo Medical Center $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Doctors Hospital of Laredo $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21

Medpoint Ambulance $3,068.06 $219.15 $3,287.21
Skyline EMS $3,068.11 $219.13 $3,287.24
Subtotal $46,021.00 $3,068.06 $46,021.00

Grand Total: $46,021.00



FY24 EMS County Assistance Grant Allocations

Projected .
AIIocat:on Totals Re:Distributed Adusted Totals
Funds Added
Bronze Starr Ambulance $5,383.62 $538.38 $5,922.00
Laredo Fire Department
.64 ) , .

EMS/Fire $5,383.6 $538.36 $5,922.00
Angel Care Ambulance $5,383.64 $538.36 $5,922.00
Webb County Volunteer

Fire/EMS $5,383.64 $538.36 $5,922.00
Victorious Care Ambulance $5,383.64 $538.36 $5,922.00
Priority EMS $5,383.62 $538.38 $5,922.00
Zapata County Fire/EMS $14,934.00 $14,934.00
Texas Superior Ambulance $5,383.64 $538.36 $5,922.00
Laredo Lifeline $5,383.64 $538.36 $5,922.00
Medpoint Ambulance $5,383.64 $538.36 $5,922.00
Villa Ambulance $5,383.64 $538.36 $5,922.00
Skyline EMS $16,570.00 $16,570.00
Subtotal $90,724.00 $5,383.64 $90,724.00

Grant Total: $90,724.00



ITEM 24-51 (TAB 6)



aduenquy a4e) jebuy _

eioser) [abuy

woo'rewb g | suewaul| 065€-€9£-956 SW3
wod'rewnoy @ abssewoly +186-2r2-956 SW3 aoueINquIY aIe) [3BuY ZouleN O4OpY
sny'opele'1o@zadol 2128-982-956 SW3 ndeq eilg opareT Jo Ao zodo 'y awier
SS2.ppy |lew3 suoud wawuedaq Bunuoseidoy aweN Jaquap

133HS NI-NOIS SIILLINNOD v2Ad
JIONNOD AHOSIAQY TYNOIDIY SOVTd NIA3S




Ww02"ouISyn @ sewl| eueljj|| €1 12-€25-956 [ejeuoaN opasen Jo fendsoH s10300Q seloey\ sew euelj

w02 ouIsyn @ zaezuob-a||ayoo. 2.22-£25-956 [eulsie opaseT jo [endsoH s10y00Q Za|ezuoy) "/ 9|jeyoey
woo suIsyn @ ebenzie ejpuqed Sl 12-€25-956 jewayey opaJeT Jo jendsoH siojooq ebenziy ) ejauqen
18U'SYO @ |[UnW e1ona) 880¢-€9/-956 [eulsieiy I3jUd] [eJIP3BIN Opalen OljiNN BronReT

19U'syd @equn_euew 8802-€9/-956 [ewajen 18)us) [edIpajy opale aqun einey

$S21ppy ilew3 auoyd juswpedag Bunuasaiday alleN Jaquiay

sotausi) ,endny, adnjepens ‘HiYHI-3DIA 23434 eoljdbuy :NOSHIJHIVHO v202 ‘62 AHYNHE3d :31va 33LLIWWOD /NJIN / TVLVNIHAG

133HS NI-NOIS SFILLININOD veAd
TINNOD AHOSIAGY TYNOID3H SOVId NIAIS



19)u3) |E2IPS Opaie

Jopaug
[eJIP3 [eul3ie

aneAl 8blo3s) "1q

. — 10Sb SDINIDS
JBuUsyI@aqunT e -96/-966 121Ud)) [B2Ip3N OpaleT S USLLIOM Jo1uIq agqun eue
12USYOIDOjUNWTRPRST -om%wmw 12JU3D) |e2Ipa opaiet 101eUIPIO0D) [BIUID o[jUNy epna
. — 9bTH Jabeuepy
PUSYOI@UR|IURS BLR|Y -06/-956 121U |e2Ipaj OpaieT WeiBold |euiaep uejnues euep
J011Q .
opaleT Jo [endsoH s10100Q 2IDBIA [RUIAEI sapiARUag piAeq ‘g
wodauIsyn@soulsausiy adnjepens -mmmmmmm opaieT Jo jendsoH s1010Q J010211G soJausl) “d adnjepens
; . LT Jabeuepy
wodduisyn®zado| Aaoels _£76.066 opaieT Jo |eudsoH s10100Q WeiBold [euIsIeiy zadon Asoels
TVYINR INOHd ANVdINOD LI JNVYN
T juasqy T uasald
:NOILLYOO1
‘NVYINNIVHO-3DIA
T uasqy 1JuUasald
:31vd ONILIIN
‘NVINMIVHO

331ININOD TVNYSLVIN ¥ZAA




woojirewb @ swo auidys Zyrr-912-956 S3 SIN3 suldS osapi109 Auuyopr

woo ' jiewb p [eews! louadnssexa) 22.9-152-956 S3 soue|INquiy Jouadng sexa] $910|4 |9ews|
woo'|lewb @/ 7/404 6912-909-956 SW3 aouenquiy seye ojse auay

sNn"xy opa.e|' 10 @ £zadoll 2128-9€2-956 SW3 jdeq 8114 opaleT zado 'y swrer

wod ooyeA @ ejadauliay) /8/€-152-956 SW3 auljeyi] opasen Za[ezuoy Jajed

SSalppy |lew3 auoyd yuswypedag Bunuasaiday awieN Jaquiapy

euljopy sjrueyd ‘HIVHO-30IA

jeadiejjip 103914 :NOSHIdHIVHO

¥20z ‘62 Atenigqa4 :31va

J3LLINWOD TVLIdSOH-3dd /SN

133HS NI-NOIS SI3LLINNOD vZAd
TIINNOD AHOSIAGY TYNOID3H SOVTd NIAIS




snxyopalelo@ezadoll | 2128-962-956 S3 "ideQ aui4 opaset jo Ao zadoT v awier

~ 8uoud.

‘Bunussaidey | -

=, =T il

- ssaippy jlews ~ jusunuedeq |

133HS NI-NDIS STILLINWOD vZAd
TIONNOD AHOSIAQY TYNOIOD3YH SOV14d NIAIS



ITEM 24-52 (TAB 7)



FY24 EMS RAC EXCEPTIONAL ITEM (E.l.) FUNDING ALLOCATION PLAN

Entity

Allocation Totals

Bronze Starr Ambulance

Laredo Fire Department EMS/Fire
Angel Care Ambulance

Webb County Volunteer Fire/EMS
Victorious Care Ambulance
Priority EMS

Laredo Lifeline

Villa Ambulance

Texas Superior Ambulance
Zapata County Fire/EMS

Laredo Medical Center

Doctors Hospital of Laredo

$10,477.64
$10,477.64
$10,477.64
$10,477.64
$10,477.64

$10,477.64
$10,477.64

$10,477.64
$10,477.64
$10,477.66

$10,477.64

$10,477.64

Medpoint Ambulance $10,477.64
Skyline EMS $10,477.66
TOTAL: $146,687.00




ITEM 24-53 (TAB 8)



ITEM 24-53-a. (TAB 8)



00°0S '128/05.$
:pred/|

066 's993
diystaquiay
vIAd

6SPSH

€20T-LT
6 /E€T0Z-81-6

sap

SaA

SIA

q93m

(paisap
Ajing) @suenquuy Joradng sexa ]

0$ '1°8/05.S
*P1ed/0SLS
15994
diyssaquiain
vZAd

T652H#

£207-L2-1T
/€207-82-01

S3A

saA

S84

9qam

(paisap Alind) D11 “aunay opasey

0sL$
‘leg /0§ :pied
\ OMNm 1S934
nEEwnEwS-
YTAd

oN

ON

oN

oN

oN

agam

{paisap AlIng) pareniu| diysiaquiaiy)
aJe) aduejnquy see

P1ed/056'T$
$934
diyssaquiaiy
VTAd

0§ '1eg/0S6TS PEYEITZI0#

£207-81
21 /e20z-9-21

S3A

V/N

SaA

qgam

(paisap
Ajng) opaJsen Jo |eudso} sioy0q

08 '128/0S£$|
‘PIed/0SLS
5994
diysaaquiaiy
vZAd

80ESESH

€20C-5-1T
/€202-92-0T

saA

soA

sap

993m

(pa1s3A Ating)
juswiedag all4 opaset o AND

[

‘teg / 00°0S4$
‘pred/osLS
5394
diysiaquisiy
YA

91098

€202-91
-6 /€20Z-11-6

N

sap

$3A

qqam

(paisap Ajnd)
2711 ‘@2IAIS d3uRNqUIY Jelg dZUOLG

0S.$ /1eg

03 'P'ed/0SLS
s394
diysiaquiay
YZAd

ON

oN

Y

S9A

sap

qgam

(paisan
Aljng) 901 ‘asueinquiy ase) (38uy

0$ '128/00°0SLS
‘Pled/0sLS|
B
diyssaquiapy
YTA3

STITH

€C0C-T-11
/€20Z-1€-01

S8

saA

Sap

LLETY)

(e20Z '8z 15n3ny
pauior) sauejnquiy ase) Alewld

{vzoz/g0)
Sunasy

pieog

v202/L0

{vzoz/9)

pieog oN

pieog oN

(vzoz/oe/s)
Bunaspy

pieog

(vz0Z/90)
Bunsapy

pizog oN

(vzoz/e)
Sunasiy

pieog oN

{vzoz/ez/z)
Bunaapn

pieog

(vzoz/oe/T)
dunasayy

pseog

(ezoz/zT)
Junaap

pieog oN

(ezoz/t1)

(ezoz/ez/oT)

(ezoz/62/6)

pteog oN

paeog

pied/ang
Junowy|

JaquinN
19342

Pos d
aeq/pled
ajeg

paniuigng

JUBUWSSASSY
spaaN

pannugng
uARpIYY
SN2

pauiwgns
uonjedddy

Auno)

aweN Ayu3

VvSL

Aewwng diysiaquisiN JvY4S vZA4




‘eg /0SLS ‘Pied
10528 5994
diyssequiapy
$ZAd

d d osf czvie

€20Z/v/0T
[€202-62-6

°N

S9A

S9A

qgam

{paisap
Ajjng diysiaquiay pasciddy pieog)
3IIAIBS dURINQUUY B{JIA

1ed/0SLS

1$993
diyssagquiain
YZA4

d d 0$ (28 /oscg| SLSEH

£20Z-61-01
/E70Z-81-0T

saA

SaA

S3A

eyedez

(pai1san
Aing) SW3/a114 Auno) eedez

12d/05L

15334
diyszaquiaiy
vZAd

d d 0 'leg /os¢s| 26T6H

£202/v/0T
/ezoz/6/6

saA

sa\

SoA

830 wir

(pa1san Aling) ‘SW3 duIAYS

:pred/0sLS
15394
diyssaquiany
YZAd

v d 0$ '1ea fossg]  ZE66VH

£20Z-97-2T
/€20Z-51-2T

N

s35

sap

qq9m

(parsa Ajnd)
SIN3/a413 J33UNjOA AJUNOD) Ga3M|

diysiaquaN
vZAd

d d 05.$ '(eg| 6SvSH

£207-L2
-6 /ETOT-ET-6

saA

Y

sa)

q9oMm

(pa1sap
AlIng} saueinquy 2Je) SNOLIOWIA

1pled/0sLS
5994
diyssaquisiy
YZAd

d d 0¢$ jeg foscg] TL6EH

vZ0T-1
jz /v70Z-1€-10

SOA

SaA

s34

qqem

{paisap
A)In4) "2y} ‘uenquiy Wiodpay

:p1ed/0s.$
15934
diyssaquiaiy
YZAS

d d 0s jeg/oszsf  VBSO#

€202-9
1T /£202-02-6

sa)

sap

S3A

99em

(pa3s3A Alin4) SW3 Aloud

d d 056'T$ 128/0S
:P1ed/0S6°'TS
1$934
n_r_EwnEO_\‘
[Z2¥]

oN

ON

SIA

v/N

s34

qgam

{paisap
Aling) 133u3) [@31paN Opase

009°T$ :2ng
1304 /0SL$ '(e8
/08 :pred/osL$
5334
diyszaquiay

[ 448 ]

/058$ = 001$
15394 37 £TAS
+06L6 5334
diyssaquaiy
jx48]

oN

ON

oN

aN

oN

992m

(paisap Alind) SN aJe] jexded

Aewiwing diysiaquiainl JVY4S vTAS




ITEM 24-53-e. (TAB 8)



Introduction to CARES

(Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival)

__| CARES

Cardiac Arrest Registry
to Enhance Survival




WCARES

N Cardiac Arrest Registry
to Enhance Survival

Contents
= |mportance of OHCA Data Collection 3
s Brief History of CARES 3
= CARES Case Definition 4
= Data Collection & Elements 4
=  Reporting Capability 5
= CARES in Action 6
= Additional Resources 6

introduction to CARES 2



il Cardiac Arrest Registry
to Enhance Survival

Importance of OHCA Data Collection

EMS treated out-of-hospital cardiac arrest (OHCA) affects more than 350,000 Americans each year and is the third
leading cause of disability adjusted life years (DALY} in the United States, behind cardiovascular disease and back
pain. About 90 percent of people who experience an out-of-hospital cardiac arrest die. However, community-specific
survival rates vary markedly in the United States.

Cardiac arrest resuscitation is an important measure of a community’s emergency response readiness. Successful
resuscitation requires involvement by a range of individuals — including bystanders, emergency medical dispatchers,
first responders, paramedics, and hospital providers — and depends on rapid performance of a series of critical
actions intended to maximize the chances of survival following cardiac arrest, known as “the chain of survival”. The
links in this chain include activation of the emergency response system, rapid provision of CPR, early defibrillation,
prompt delivery of EMS care, and early post-resuscitative care. It is the range in timeliness and quality of these links
in the chain of survival that create the wide variation in survival rates. For every minute of cardiac arrest without
CPR or defibrillation, a patient’s chance of survival falls by 7-10%. Performing bystander CPR can nearly double
survival and public access defibrillation results in an almost 50% survival rate for patients presenting in a shockable
rhythm.

Critical actions needed to improve chances of survival of an out-of-hospital cardiac arrest

> ‘ _)J:'O %-ﬁ'

Rapid recognition Early cardiopulmonary Early rapd Rapid delivery of Early post
and activation of resuscitation (CPR) defibrillation with advanced resuscitative care
EMSvia9-1-1 with an emphasis on an AED emergency
chest compressions medical services

Measurement is key to improving quality of care and patient outcomes. In 2015, the Institute of Medicine released
“Strategies to Improve Cardiac Arrest Survival: A Time to Act,” which recommended the establishment of a national
cardiac arrest registry to monitor performance, identify problems, and track progress. Comprehensive surveillance
and reporting are the foundations for improving patient outcomes. Reliable and accurate data are critical toward
developing metrics, identifying benchmarks, revising education and training materials, and implementing best
practices.

Brief History of CARES

In 2004, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) established CARES in collaboration with the
Department of Emergency Medicine at the Emory University School of Medicine, with a mission to help communities
determine standardized outcome measures for OHCA allowing for quality improvement efforts and benchmarking
capability to improve care and increase survival. The program allows participating EMS systems to compare their
performance to de-identified aggregate statistics, allowing for longitudinal benchmarking capability at the local,
regional, and national level. By creating a user-friendly system to collect OHCA data and forming a network to share
best practices, CARES has transformed the manner in which EMS agencies address OHCA.

CARES began in Atlanta, Georgia collecting nearly 1,500 OHCA events in 2006. As displayed on the CARES Participant
Map, the program has since expanded to include 33 state-based registries and more than 50 individual community
sites. CARES represents a catchment area of more than 178 million people or approximately 53% of the US
population. To date, the registry has captured over one million records, with more than 2,300 £MS agencies and
2,500 hospitals participating nationwide.

Introduction to CARES 3



CARES Case Definition

CARES captures data on all non-traumatic out-of-hospital cardiac arrests where resuscitation is attempted by a 911
Responder (CPR and/or defibrillation). This also includes patients that receive an AED shock by a bystander prior to
the arrival of 911 Responders. Inclusion and exclusion criteria are described below in Tables 1 and 2:

Table 1. CARES inclusion criteria {all of the following must be met)

e  Patients of all ages who experience a non-traumatic, out-of-hospital cardiac arrest.

e  Patients who are puiseless on arrival of 911 Responder; OR
e  Patients who become pulseless in the presence of 911 Responder; OR

e  Patients who have a pulse on arrival of EMS, where a successful attempt at defibrillation was undertaken by a
bystander prior to arrival of 911 Responder.

Table 2. CARES exclusion criteria (any of the following)

e  Unworked/untreated cardiac arrests, to include codes that are terminated immediately upon arrival of EMS because
the patient is not a viable candidate for resuscitation due to:
o Injuries incompatible with life. o Signs of decomposition.
o The presence of rigor mortis or lividity. o Presence of a valid DNR.

e  Private EMS transport that did not involve 911 dispatch.

e  Cardiac arrest of clear and obvious traumatic etiology.

e  Bystander suspected cardiac arrest, where ROSC was achieved without the need for defibrillation or 911 Responder
CPR.

Data Collection & Elements

Data collection within CARES is based on the Utstein-style definitions — a standardized template of uniform reporting
guidelines for clinical variables and patient outcomes that was developed by international resuscitation experts.1?
The Utstein template can be used within hospitals, EMS systems, or communities and enables identification of areas
that need improvement and comparisons across systems.

The CARES web-based software (https://mycares.net/), links three sources to describe each OHCA event: 1) 911 call
center data, 2) EMS data, and 3) hospital data. Data can be submitted in two ways:
1. Using a data-entry form on the CARES website for manual input.
2. Daily upload from an agency’s electronic patient-care record (ePCR) system.
o Please note, only applicable if using a CARES-compliant ePCR vendor and the EMS agency meets
the minimum requirement of at least 10 CARES-qualifying cases per month.

Access to the CARES website is restricted to authorized users, who are prohibited from viewing data from another
agency or hospital.

i Cummins RO, Chamberlain DA, Abramson NS, et al. Recommended guidelines for uniform reporting of data from out-of-hospital cardiac arrest: The Utstein style. A
statement for health professionals from a Task Force of the American Heart Association, the European Resuscitation Council, the Heart and Stroke Foundation of
Canada, and the Australian Resuscitation Council. Circulation. 84:960-975.

2 perkins GD, Jacobs IG, Nadkarni VM, et al. Cardiac Arrest and Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation Outcome Reports: Update of the Utstein Resuscitation Registry
Templates for Out-of-Hospital Cardiac Arrest: A Statement for Healthcare Professionals From a Task Force of the International Liaison Committee on Resuscitation
and the American Heart Association Emergency Cardiovascular Care Committee and the Council on Cardiopulmonary, Critical Care, Perioperative and Resuscitation,
Resuscitation. 96:328-340

Introduction to CARES 4



(_ MW CARES

) Cardiac Arrest Registry
" to Enhance Survival

The required and optional CARES elements collected from 911 call centers, EMS providers, and receiving hospitals

are described below in Table 3.

Table 3. CARES data elements

Dispatch

EMS

Hospital

None; supplemental data
completion is
encouraged

Required

Patient demographics (i.e., name, age, date
of birth, incident address, sex, and
race/ethnicity)

Arrest circumstances (i.e., location type,
witness status, and etiology)

Resuscitation-specific data (i.e., CPR
initiation, AED application, defibrillation,
initial arrest rhythm, return of spontaneous
circulation [ROSC], field hypothermia, and
pre-hospital survival status)

Emergency department outcome

Provision of therapeutic
hypothermia (TTM)

Hospital outcome
Discharge location
Neurological outcome at discharge

(using the Cerebral Performance
Categories [CPC] Scale)

Time call received at
dispatch center, time of
dispatch, time en route,
time of arrival at the
scene, time of arrival at
ED

Supplemental

Pre-hospital interventions (i.e., usage of
mechanical CPR device, ITD, 12 Lead,
automated CPR feedback device, and
advanced airway; administration of drugs;
and diagnosis of STEMI)

Treatment times (i.e., time of arrest, CPR,
defibrillation, sustained ROSC, and field
termination)

Hospital procedures (i.e., coronary
angiography, CABG, and stent or
ICD placement), date/time of
discharge/death, and Medical
Record Number

The CARES dataset is geocoded on an annual basis and linked to a number of census-tract level variables: median
household income, median age, race/ethnicity, unemployment rate, poverty status, urbanicity, and educational

attainment.

Reporting Capability

The CARES software includes functionality to automate data analysis for participating EMS agencies. The reports
include 911 response intervals, delivery rates of critical interventions (i.e., bystander CPR, dispatcher CPR, public
access defibrillation [PAD]), and community rates of survival using the Utstein template. An EMS agency has
continuous access to their data and can generate reports by date range at their convenience. The software is also
capable of aggregate reporting such that CARES staff can generate custom reports for benchmarking and surveillance
purposes. In addition, hospitals have access to facility-specific reports, allowing users to view pre-hospital and in-
hospital characteristics of their patient population with benchmarking capability. A robust query feature also allows
agencies and hospitals to create customized searches of their data. These search resuits can be easily exported to

Microsoft Excel for further analysis.

Sample EMS Reports: Utstein Survival Report, CARES Survival Report, CARES Summary Report, EMS CAD Times

Report, and Demographics Report

Sample Hospital Reports: Hospital Survival Report, Hospital Benchmarking Report

Sample Dispatcher Assisted-CPR Report

Introduction to CARES



( FWCARES

LY Cardiac Arrest Registry
to Enhance Survival

CARES in Action

CARES releases an Annual Report in the spring and uses this publication as an opportunity to highlight innovative
and impactful work being done in CARES states and communities, in the “CARES in Action” section. These reports
are hosted under the Data tab of our website.

Additional case studies, testimonials, and letters of support can be found in the CARES in Action document.

Additional Resources

Internal Resources
e  CARES Fact Sheet
e MMWR Document

External Resources
e Resuscitation Academy
e HeartRescue
e  Citizen CPR Foundation

Introduction to CARES 6






( Mcares

CARES EMS FAQ

What is CARES?

CARES stands for the Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival. CARES is a collaborative effort
of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and Emory University, Woodruff Health
Sciences. The ultimate goal of CARES is to improve survival from sudden cardiac death. The
registry is designed to help local EMS administrators and medical directors identify who is
affected, when and where cardiac arrest events occur, which elements of the system are
functioning properly and which elements are not, and how changes can be made to improve
cardiac arrest outcomes. CARES utilizes an internet database system that reduces time involved
in registering out-of-hospital cardiac arrest (OHCA) events, tracking patient outcomes with
hospitals prospectively, and response time intervals associated with First Responder and EMS
agencies.

What are the benefits of participation?

CARES participants can generate multiple reports in real-time via secure online access, allowing
for longitudinal, internal benchmarking. Both locally and nationally, there is increasing emphasis
on the role of data collection as the foundation for improving care. In 2015, the Institute of
Medicine released "Strategies to Improve Cardiac Arrest Survival: A Time to Act”, the first of
eight recommendations was the establishment of a national cardiac arrest registry "to monitor
performance in terms of both success and failure, identify problems, and track progress." By
participating in CARES, EMS providers and hospitals are taking the initial step to saving lives in
their community.

What does participating in CARES involve?

CARES asks that a designated contact be established at each participating EMS agency. This
contact serves as the local CARES administrator for the agency and oversees CARES operations.
The EMS contact is the liaison between the EMS agency and CARES staff throughout
participation with CARES. The EMS contact works closely with CARES staff to determine the
most appropriate methods for starting data collection and program implementation and
monitors data collection for the EMS agency and participating hospitals.

How does data get into CARES?

There are two methods of data entry into the CARES database. 1) The CARES dataset can be
entered via desktop computer by the CARES EMS contact or the EMS field
providers/supervisors. 2) For agencies with more than 10 records a month, the CARES dataset
can be automatically extracted from the electronic Patient Care Report which then auto-
populates the CARES registry. Please see the CARES website for more information on our

upload process.

How does CARES collect hospital outcomes?

CARES encourages voluntary participation from hospitals where the participating EMS agency
transports cardiac arrest patients. A CARES contact person needs to be identified at each
participating hospital. The only requirements for a contact are that he/she has access to hospital
records to obtain outcome data and has a clinical background. The hospital dataset consists of
five simple questions and is only required for worked arrests of non-traumatic etiology where
the EMS crew indicates there was ongoing resuscitation in the emergency department. The



hospital contact will be given access to the CARES website (https://mycares.net) and can enter
hospital outcomes at their convenience.

Is the CARES website secure?

CARES uses Secure Socket Layer {SSL) encryption technology in transmitting Protected Health
Information to redundant secure AWS EC2 servers to help ensure the integrity and privacy of the
Protected Health Information provided to them via the Internet. Encryption involves
systematically scrambling numbers and letters, so that even if someone managed to intercept the
information, they would not be able to decode the information. In order to take advantage of this
encryption technology, customers need to have an Internet browser that will support 128-bit
encryption. The data is protected with an encrypted database with daily backups, and is securely
accessible with redundant pathways via the CARES website. The entire system is protected by
cutting edge AWS protection, with off-site data archiving to assure data integrity even in the
event of a catastrophe.

Does CARES use identifiable patient information?

Yes, CARES requires the use of a patient's name and date of birth (DOB) to link the EMS record
with the hospital outcomes. The name and DOB are provided by the EMS agency. Once a record
is determined to be complete by CARES staff, the record is de-identified, or "scrubbed", of
patient name and DOB.

How does HIPAA apply?

CARES was approved and considered exempt from further review by the Emory University IRB.
CARES is considered to be a quality improvement/assurance program conducted by a covered
entity and is thus considered "healthcare operations." Therefore CARES is not subject to Privacy
Rule requirements for research activities or patient authorization. In general, the Privacy Rule
permits the use or disclosure of patient information for a registry if the registries are supporting
public health activities and/or registries developed for health care operations of health care
providers, such as QA/Ql. For more information, please see the letter from the CDC and the
Memorandum of Understanding between Emory/CARES and the CDC on the CARES website.

Who has access to the data?

Each participating EMS agency has access to all of the EMS and hospital data for their respective
patients. EMS agencies do not have access to data from other participating agencies. Hospital
contacts can view but not edit the EMS portion of the CARES form for patients transported to
their facility and do not have access to other hospitals' data. However, Integrated Health
Systems can request permission to establish a multi-hospital CARES account allowing for
centralized data access and institutional level reporting. If the state is a CARES participant, the
state coordinator has access to all EMS and hospital data within the state. CARES staff has access
to all EMS and hospital data for monitoring and de-identification purposes.

What is the data used for?

CARES data helps local EMS administrators and medical directors identify which elements of the
system are functioning properly and which elements are not, and how changes can be made to
improve cardiac arrest outcomes. Using the CARES software, the EMS agency will have the
ability to generate "real-time" Utstein Survival Reports, EMS and First Responder response
interval reports, as well as demographic reports. The EMS agency can use this data to inform



system changes that will improve outcomes for cardiac arrest patients. CARES allows for
confidential internal benchmarking for the participating EMS agency. CARES data is also de-
identified and aggregated each April allowing for annual reports to be shared locally, regionally,
statewide and nationally for both benchmarking and research purposes. CARES participates in
Healthy People 2020 in an effort to track bystander preparedness at the community level.
External use of the dataset is managed through a formal data sharing process.

How do | obtain more information about CARES?

More information is available via the CARES website {https://mycares.net). Visit the CARES
homepage and select the "About CARES" tab. Please feel free to contact CARES staff with any
questions (information found on the “Contact Us” webpage).






[EANS 90UBYUT O}

AisiboyY Pm®:< om_Qmo o T B 7 AnsiBay 1sauy oBIipeD
SES\Zol| HIIVIH | OWE (X) S3dvO

<< U0 peaJ ‘Aiunwiwiod 4nok djay ued $3y¥vyD Moy Ino pulj o ‘nNpa A10WS@S3LI 18 SN 1DBIUDD 40
J9u°sa1e2AW ISIA ‘STYYD INOge JI0W UIed| O]

Ou-l

"S318.4 |BAIAINS 1S3.1E JeIpied
anoadwi 01 moy AJiusp! pue asuewlopad aJNSeaWw SaIUNWWIOD
sdjay SIYVD "93UBLaIp B )jew ued SIYYD 43Yym s,3eyl

"aAIAINS 10U op Ssiuaned asayy jo Aolew
ay) ‘Ajp1eUNIO UN "SIILIS PAUN 33 Ul Isa.Je deipaed [eudsoy
-J0-1n0 ue aduaiadxa ajdoad 00‘00E Uyl dJow ‘dedk Auan3

edpiued iRl

s

‘Aiwey 13y yum

awoy 1e Jayjowpuesb pjo-1eak-09 v yJed ayl ul buibbol sayiey " _ i
p|O-1ea/- L€ ¥ "Woo.ssed jooyds e ul 1ib pjo-1edak-z| v -awn 2 e,
2RiRye
Aue 1e ‘alaymAue ‘suoAue 323 e ued 3saJle dejpied uappns B e o B
Pt ..imw..az =S
= .

*$3SP) 152448 deIpJed uoy|iw | ueyl
210w sueyuod A11s16a1 9yl pue ‘suedLIBWY UOI|[IW S/ | UBY) 310W SIS
12y1 sjendsoy pue sapuabe SN3I 1u3sa1dal S1aqUIBW STYYD JUBLIND

S3L1IS LN3I¥H¥ND




‘npa-iowa@sa.ed
18 SN [1BWS JO IDU'SIBIAW 18 3J0W UIedT 'NOA UM Y|e1 0] sluem S3YyD ‘21ed Isaule Jeipaed Buinoudun

Ul PR3SJ21UI S| AJUNWWOI JN0A JT "|2A3) AIUNWWOD 3Y3 PUE [3AJ] 31L1S 3Y) Y10q 1e djqe|ieae aJe suonduisqns

"s)yJewyduaq [euoneu o3 uosiiedwod pue suoda. jenuue
s Aunwwod JNoA MaIAJ 01 UONEINSUOI Buo-uo-auo Buipnpul ‘'uopeddiued

10 1IN0 1sow 33 136 03 yeis s3yv) wouy woddns Bujobuo pue Bujuiesy aA1RIBY o

*alow pue ‘suoneluasald ‘suodas up asn oy

sajqes pue ‘sydeub ‘sueyd Buipnidul ‘sainieay buiuiodal awil-jeas 3jdiNw SSAVY o

“JUSA3 YOHO Yoea 104 pJodad 3)buls e Buneasd

‘eyep |eudsoy pue SN YUl 01 2IeMI0S Paseq-gam ue)dwod-yydIH ‘djdwis 3sn e

“15a.44e Je1pJe) 0) asuodsal s,waisAs [edipaw Aduabiawa ok anoidwi 01 skem

J9A0JSIP pue dauewlopad [euoiieu pue ‘a3els ‘|edo| 01 Aunwiwod Jnok asedwo) e

"1$3.448 DRIPJED UBPPNS

W0JJ [BAIAINS 35@310Ul 03 1333601 BujJom S31IUNWWO) JO YI0MIBU e ulof e

S3Y¥VD ONINIOI 40 SLId4IN3g

(SAAI} 2J0W DABS ||IM 18U 18D Ul
SIUDWIAA0ICLUI DY BW M URD IIYM
£SINUUNUILIOD

Jayio 01 auedwiod salel

|[BAIAINS 3S3JJe JelpJed JNo Op MOH
¢BuLLINDI0 SJUAAD

152.112 JBIPIED 348 USUM PUR 3I3UM
¢1salie deipaed Ag paldaye st oym

S1aUd1easay
syuawedap aJi
S9IIAISS dIURINQUUY
S|e1314J0 SN 21e1S
s|endsoH

‘ANINY3ILIA SLINVHIDILYVd
Sd13H S3¥VD

¢S3”YVI SISN OHM

*3W0I 01 SJeaA 10} SIAI| SSIUNOI SIABS PUR JUDWIILII] 1S3JIe JeIpJed JO
abpajmoun JNo s1ayLIng 1841 Y2IEIS3L [BIA 1ONPUOD 0] Pasn 3q 01 e1ep SIYVYD
3|qeUd Sainjeay asoy] 's|endsoy WwoJy UolewIoul 3Wwod3no Juaied sspnpul
05| 1BY] M34 33 JO SUO pue ‘plIom ay3 ui sasibal SN3 1s8bae| ayl Jo suo 0}
31Nq1NIU0D os|e A3y ‘SaAI aAeS pue duewsopad aroidwi wayy djay m eyl

uoneWIIoUI 01 SS378 3snf ueyy aJow ueb sauNwWwWwod ‘s3yv) Buluiol Ag

‘syleap
SS3|pPaau Juanaad Aj@1ewnnn pue—aied

HLTY3H 40 LN3W.1HVd3a waiyed o Anjenb ayy anoadwit pue awn
VINVATASNNId ‘HOL1O3¥1a
IVIIA3N SWI HLTVIMNOWNOD

QW 'SYdii SY19n0a

190 Ajlenuapiuod axuewsopuad Jay)

3oeJ} 01 J3PJO Ul 3SEqeIep |euolleu e
1042 Op un2 am Aom

1534 Y3 SI SIYVD HUIY}
[ pub—3ajqon|pAul st

olul sjeadsoy pue sapusbe SN3 wouy
eiep isalle deypaed Buuus 01 NWwWwod
S3YVD ulof 12yl SauUNWIWOD 's3IeIs
panun syl ul uoI||0d e1ep (YOHO)
1sa4Je Jeip.aed [eydsoy-jo-3no ybnoiyy

Sawo23n0 juaiod 353440

IDIPIDI PUD 31D 1SILID

1S2.Je JeIpJed Wol [eAIANS 3Acidwi 01
J0Ipn3 s Jo Apnb ay)
Aisianiun A1ow3 pue UoijUBAlLd pue

butpupsiapun Ajni pup J0JIUO)) 3SBASI 104 S2IUBD SN Y}

buunspaw woif uiob £Q PaysIgeISS SeM—|RAIAINS 3dueyu3

upb3 Aunwwod o JYm, 03 Ai3siBay 1504l de1pie) ayl—sI3yy)

¢S3¥VI SI LVHM

*Aepo1 s3yvD ur Aunwiwod
AnoA Buijjosua Aq 1saLle deipJed wouy SaAl Buiaes 03 JuswlwWWwiod JNoA moys

‘uonap B ay3 ul buiaow a1,43y3 JI mouy| 01 316Bn.s sisylo
‘$3104 [BAIAINS 3SEJDUI 03 SABM PRJIBACISIP SARY SAINUNWIWOD AUBW 3|IYM

"S31B4 [PAIAINS Ul 9UBJ3LIP Jueyubis e axew 0) SWads auo|e

eiep Bulnseaw pue 6uI3|02 30 ss30.1d ay] 'sjod0104d pue Buluiesy SNI

10 s34npad04d ydiedsip | L6 01 sabueyd 3jdwis Yim uayo—Iisalie deipied
Buiniains jo axueyd siuanied e anoadwi Apuedyubis 01 sAkem punoy aney
S3UUNLILWIOD BLUOS I3A "SIPLIAP 104 JurubelS paulewal sey saiels paun ayl
$S0JJB SUMO) pue S313D AUBLU U] 1S3.4J. JeIpJed U3PPNS WO} 9181 |BAIAINS 3Y L






Cardiac Arrest Registry to Enhance Survival

Part E: Hospital Section

47 - ER Qutcome 49 - Hospital Qutcome

O Died in the ED O Died in the hospital

O Admitted to hospital O Discharged alive

O Transferred to another acute O Patient made DNR
care facility from the ED

[ Died in the hospital

48 - Was hypothermia care initiated O Discharged alive

or continued in the hospital
O Yes

Not yet determined
O No 0O Noty

[0 Transferred to another acute care hospital

3 Not yet determined

Hospital procedures

52 - Why was hypothermia care not initiated or
continued in the hospital?

O Awake/Following commands
[J DNR/Family request
O Unwitnessed cardiac arrest

O unshockable rhythm

[0 No TH program in place
O Other
[0 YUnknown

53 - Date and time of Discharge/Death

/ /

Hour Minute

54 - Was the final diagnosis

Yes No Unknown
acute myocardial infarction = o o

Hospital Com ments

[ Transferred to another acute care hospital

50 - Discharge From The Hospital
O Home/Residence

[0 Rehabilitation Facility
[0 Skilled Nursing Facility/Hospice

If yes, choose one of the following:

51 - Neurological Qutcome At Discharge
From Hospital

[0 Good Cerebral Performance (CPC 1)
O Moderate Cerebral Disability (CPC 2)
[0 Severe Cerebral Disability (CPC 3)

O Coma, Vegetative State (CPC 4)

§5. Coronary Angiography Performed [J Yes [J No [0 Unknown

If 'Yes', provide date and time:

/ /

Hour Minute

56 - Was a cardiac stent placed
57- CABG performed
58 - Was an ICD placed and/or scheduled

O Yes O No [O Unknown
O vyes 0O No O unknown
O vYes O No O unknown

59 - Hospital Medical Record Number




